ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
February 9, 2007
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair

Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senat or Donny O son

Senator Gary W I ken

Senat or Bettye Davis

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 1
"An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 1

SHORT TITLE: | NCREASE AMI OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W LKEN

W TNESS REG STER

John Al cantra, Governnent Rel ations D rector
Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on of Al aska
4100 Spenard Road

Anchor age, AK 99517

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 1

St ephani e Alli son, Menber

Great Al aska School s

9414 Long Run Drive

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 1

M chael Sigler, coordinator
G eat Al aska School s

SENATE SED COW TTEE -1- February 9, 2007



1505 Crest Court
Juneau, AK 99801
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 1

M ke Fisher, Chief Financial Oficer
Fai rbanks North Star School District
PO Box 71267

Fai r banks, Al aska 99707

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 1

Sue Hull, School Board nenber

Fai rbanks North Star School D strict
PO Box 71267

Fai r banks, Al aska 99707

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 1

Eddy Jeans, Director of School Finance
Depart nent of Education &
Early Devel opnent
801 W 10'" st.
Juneau, AK 99801-1894
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avail able for questions on SB 1

Carl Rose, Executive D rector
Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards
316 W1llth St.

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 1

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate Special Committee on
Education neeting to order at 8:01:48 AM Present at the call to
order were Senators Davis, dson, WIken, Huggins, and Chair
St evens.

SB 1- 1 NCREASE AMI OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON

CHAI R STEVENS announced SB 1 to be up for consideration.
8:02:17 AM
SENATOR W LKEN, sponsor of SB 1, explained that it pertains to

increasing the base student allocation used in the funding
formula to $5, 810.

SENATE SED COWM TTEE - 2- February 9, 2007



He said that since 1998 the K-12 public school funding formula
has distributed education dollars based on a per-student
all ocation. The increase in this allocation will mtigate rising
costs and help direct nore education dollars into classroons.
The bill does not address all rising costs in the public schoo

system as required retirenent contributions alone wll cost
over $200 million statewide in the next fiscal year. It does
cover the estimated inflation rate provided by the Departnent of
Labor in 2006, and includes additional funds to aid schools in
reduci ng cl ass si ze.

8:05:41 AM

SENATOR W LKEN referenced a chart provided to the conmttee to
expl ain changes in student funding from past fiscal years, and
to show that the current bill’s increase in funding would be in
line wth past increases. He said that the governor had issued a
request for SB 1 to be noved through the |egislature quickly
and he echoed her sentinent.

8:08: 25 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked what the additional, unspecified funds in
the increase woul d be used for.

SENATOR WLKEN replied that the anmount would offset increased
energy costs and the currently high pupil-to-teacher ratio, and
help reduce the need for local taxes paid by individual
districts. He added that 2007 was the renewal year for the No
Child Left Behind (NCLB) act, which may burden the |egislature
wi th additional tasks.

8:11:16 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for the target date for early funding.

SENATOR W LKEN replied that the target was March 15th, 60 days
into the session.

8:12:10 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if increasing natural gas costs would be
i ncluded in the funding increase.

SENATOR WLKEN replied that that cost would be included in the
portion of the increase neant for inflation.

SENATE SED COWM TTEE - 3- February 9, 2007



8:12: 55 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked why Senator WIlken didn’t propose a higher
i ncrease in funding than 4 percent.

SENATOR WLKEN replied that the nunbers were based on genera
inflation rates.

SENATOR OLSON asked if the governor was in favor of the bill.

SENATOR W LKEN replied that the bill was a starting point for
negoti ations, and the governor’s budget was still a work in
pr ogr ess.

8:15: 56 AM

SENATOR W LKEN explained that the student population has
decreased by 3,000 since 1999, but increased funding is stil
i nsufficient.

8:18:19 AM

JOHN ALCANTRA, Director of Governor Relations for the Nationa
Educati on Association of Al aska (NEAA), said that the NEAA' s
request for the base student allocation was $5,953, $143 nore
than SB 1 proposes. Every $5 increnment in the allocation equals
around $1 million statewi de. The NEAA is working towards funding
adequacy within seven fiscal years, but nmnuch of public school
funding goes to the retirement system and inflation costs, and
not to classroons or teachers’ salaries. Public school funding
is currently $400 million short of what the NEAA considers an
adequat e K-12 budget.

8:23: 08 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what the NEAA's efforts to work with the
adm ni stration over the funding matter had been.

MR. ALCANTRA said that the NEAA would work wth the
adm nistration to explain that inflationary costs woul d dimnish
funding for school services, and that the Public Enployee and
Teacher Retirenent Systens take up mllions of dollars in
f undi ng.

8: 25: 34 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE -4- February 9, 2007



STEPHANI E ALLI SON, nenber of Geat Al aska Schools (GAS), said
that the Budget Advisory G oup of Juneau had been asked to cut
three mllion dollars from the yearly budget, and that if SB 1
passed there would be no need to nake such cuts.

8:27:48 AM

M CHAEL SI GLER, nenber of GAS, explained that the GAS coalition
of parents and comunity nenbers supported the increase in the
al l ocation. Past increases in school funding have gone nmainly to
covering retirenment costs and inflation but haven't sufficiently
nmet education quality needs. The coalition wishes to see a
fiscal plan including inflation-proofing and updated geographic
cost differentials.

8:29:58 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS asked what efforts GAS was nmking beyond
i mprovi ng funding.

MR. SIGER replied that nost people involved in the coalition
are active in schools as volunteers or work in comrunity-based
activities such as coachi ng.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said that the Juneau school district is one-
third the size of the Mat-Su district, yet has the same nunber
of special needs students. He asked if that created any specia
chal | enges for parents or teachers.

MR. SIGER replied that such students typically require nore
adult supervision than other schoolchildren, and in a fixed
budget fulfilling their needs can take noney away from
mai nstream educati on and create |arger classroons sizes for non-
speci al needs chil dren.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if M. Sigler was satisfied wth the
efforts towards educati ng special needs children.

MR. SIGER replied that aides are underpaid, the turnover rate
is high, and needs are not fully met, which nmeans | ess avail able
fundi ng for nmainstream students.

8:33:14 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS nentioned that the dropout rate in the Mat-Su is

44 percent, and asked for M. Sigler’s thoughts on the rates in
Juneau.

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 5- February 9, 2007



MR. SIGER said that the Juneau rate is around 33 to 35 percent,
and that insufficient parenting and a poor academ c nodel were
two causes of dropping out. Mre attention should be paid to
post - hi gh school vocational educati on.

8:34:46 AM

M KE FI SHER, CFO for the Fairbanks North Star School D strict,

said that while retirement funding is inportant it is taking
noney away from the classroons, which are in serious need of

basic supplies. School districts are having to cut program
funding to allow for retirenment funding increases.

SUE HULL, Fairbanks North Star School District board nenber,
said that school districts need funding to make investnents in
technol ogy and techni cal career preparation.

8:38:19 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director of School Finance for the Al aska Departnent
of Education and Early Developnent (DEED), explained the two
fiscal notes prepared by the departnent for SB 1: $88, 928, 200
for the increase in the base student allocation, and $825, 000
for the Alaska MIlitary Youth Acadeny. He said that increasing
the statewide allocation wll increase |local governnent’s
ability to give noney to education. Districts are allowed to
contribute 23 percent of their basic need in addition to the
required local contribution, so if the base allocation is

increased by $100 nmillion the increased range of |ocal
contribution would be around $20 mllion.

8:41:19 AM

SENATOR WLKEN said that the 2008 funding fornula required
$16.18 mllion in local contribution to qualify for state aid,
and that the $20 mllion figure was additional optional funding
on a |ocal | evel . This year organized Alaska wll be
contributing $205.2 mllion before receiving state aid.

8:42:39 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if any boroughs besides the Mat-Su had an
organi zed tax cap.

SENATE SED COWM TTEE - 6- February 9, 2007



MR. JEANS replied that Anchorage did as well, but he was unsure
of any ot hers.

8:43:26 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked for M. Jeans’ comments on the declining
student popul ati on.

MR. JEANS replied that the DEED doesn’'t provide long-term
student projections, but that the state population is an aging
one.

8:45: 01 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked M. Jeans if the drop in student popul ation
was in rural or urban areas.

MR. JEANS replied that it was a conbi nati on of both.
8:46: 03 AM

CHAIR STEVENS asked how rising funding correlated wth high
student dropout rates.

MR. JEANS replied that rising funding is due to increases in
fixed costs beyond the scope of the DEED such as fuel and
i nsurance prices. These costs can nean reduced services, which
may contribute to reduced student achi evenent.

8:47:49 AM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director of the Association of Al aska
School Boards, said that the NCLB act has caused funds to be
taken from regular classroom instruction to provide special
needs services. The curriculum is being narrowed and has becone
i nadequate, and digital resource funding is needed. C assroom
fundi ng has beconme secondary to retirenment funding.

8:51:23 AM

SENATOR W LKEN said that last year $5 mllion was added to the
capitol budget to start a digital |earning program for sixth-
graders across the state, and that he hoped simlar funds would
be included in the current year’s budget.

8:53: 01 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE -7- February 9, 2007



SENATOR THOVAS asked M. Jeans for his opinion on the narrow ng
cl assroom curricul um

MR. ROSE replied that digital learning is inportant for career
devel opnent, and classroons are equipped for vocational-
technical training but the prograns are not funded. Course
rel evance has nuch to do with students deciding to stay in
school .

8:56: 00 AM

SENATOR COLSON asked what digital learning prograns will do to
af fect the dropout rate.

MR. ROSE replied that such pilot progranms show how children
respond to technology, and are shown to be effective I|earning
t ool s.

8:59:43 AM

MARY FRANCES, Executive Director for the Al aska Council of
School Adm nistrators, said that adm nistrators across the state
were in the beginning stages of budget preparation and would
have a better idea in a few weeks of what the increase would
mean for school districts, but 1in general they were very
supportive of SB 1.

CHAI R STEVENS thanked the participants for their testinony and
held SB 1 in commttee.

Seeing no further Dbusiness, CHAIR STEVENS adjourned the
committee neeting at 9:00: 22 AM

SENATE SED COWM TTEE - 8- February 9, 2007



